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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Shareholders of Kuwait Investment Company K.P.S.C.
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kuwait Investment Company K.P.S.C. (the Parent
Company) and its subsidiaries (together referred to as “the Group™), which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the financial year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2017, and its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the financial year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted for use by the State of Kuwait.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements™ section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with ethical
requirement that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in the State of Kuwait. We have
fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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To the Shareholders of Kuwait Investment Company K.P.S.C. (Continued)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matiers are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. We identified the following key audit matters:

Impairment testing of intangible assets

Since on initial recognition management
determined that all of its intangible assets had
indefinite useful lives, it conducts annual
impairment tests to assess the recoverability of 1-
the carrying value of the Group’s intangible assets

and whether or not there has been any
impairment.

The annual impairment testing of intangible

assets is considered to be a key audit matter due

to the complexity of the accounting requirements 3-
and the significant judgment required in
determining the assumptions to be used to
estimate the recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount of intangible assets, which is based on the
higher of fair value less cost to sell and value in
use, has been derived from discounted forecast
cash flow models. These models use several key
assumptions, including estimates of future trading
volumes, revenue growth rates, operating costs,
terminal value growth rates and a discount rate.

Management has engaged an external expert to

assist with the impairment test. The intangible 5
asset’s carrying value was KD 11,042,602 as at

31 December 2017 and no impairment was found

to arise during the year then ended.

Refer to Note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements for the related disclosures.

How our audit addressed the matter

Qur audit procedures included carrying out the following
among others:

Involving our own in-house valuation experts to assist in
evaluating the appropriateness of the discount rates
applied and other valuation parameters.

Evaluating the independence, professional qualification
and the scope of work of management’s valuation expert.

Evaluating the appropriateness of the assumptions
applied to key inputs such as trading volumes, revenue
growth rates and operating costs, which included
comparing these inputs with externally derived data as
well as our own assessment based on our knowledge of
the client and industry.

Performing our own sensitivity analyses, which included
assessing the effect of reasonably possible reductions in
growth rates, pre-tax discount rates and forecast cash
flows to evaluate the impact on the currently estimated
headroom.

Evaluating the adequacy of the disclosures in Note 11 of
the consolidated financial statements, including
disclosures of key assumptions, judgments and
sensitivities.
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To the Shareholders of Kuwait Investment Company K.P.S.C. (Continued)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Key Audit Matters {(Continued)

Impairment testing of Investments in associate

Investments in associates include a quoted
associate with a carrying value of KD 13,944,864
having a quoted market value of KD 5,818,757.
However, management has conducted an
assessment of the associate’s value in use at the
end of the reporting period to determine whether
any impairment exists. This area was important to
our audit because of the assessment process
which is complex, judgmental and is based on
assumptions that are affected by unexpected
future market or economic conditions, particularly
those related to cash flow forecasts and applied
profit growth and discount rates. Any impairment
that might arise could be potentially material to
the Group’s reported financial performance.

As disclosed in Note 27 there are a number of key

sensitive judgments made in determining the

inputs into the impairment model which include:

= Revenue growth

= Pre-tax rate used
projections

= Growth rate used to arrive at the terminal value

to discount cash flow

Management has engaged an external expert to
assist with the impairment test. The associate’s
recoverable amount was determined to be KD
15,461,639, which is above the carrying value at
the reporting date.

recoverable amount was determined to be KD

15,461,639, which is above the carrying value at
the reporting date.

How our audit addressed the matter

Qur audit procedures included carrying out the
following among others:

1-

("3

Involving our own valuation experts to assist in
evaluating the appropriateness of the discount
rates applied and other valuation parameters;

Evaluating the independence,
qualification and the scope
management’s valuation expert,

professional
of work of

Evaluating the appropriateness of the assumptions
applied to key inputs such as trading volumes,
revenue growth rates, operating costs, which
included comparing these inputs with externally
derived data as well as our own assessment based
on our knowledge of the client and industry;

Performing our own sensitivity analysis, which
included assessing the effect of reasonably
possible reductions in growth rates, pre-tax
discount rates and forecast cash flows to evaluate
the impact on the currently estimated headroom;
and

Evaluating the adequacy of the disclosure in Note
27 of the financial statements disclosures,
including disclosures of key assumptions,
Jjudgments and sensitivities.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (Continued)
To the Shareholders of Kuwait Investment Company K.P.5.C. (Continued)
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Valuation of unquoted available for sale How our audit addressed the matter
financial assets

The Group has unquoted available for sale Our audit procedures included carrying out the following
financial assets measured at fair value using among others:

market information and significant unobservable

inputs, of which KD 12,284,335 represents level I- Our audit focused on carrying our procedures to

2 assets and KD 42,460,510 represents level 3
assets. These assets are significant in the context
of both the overall financial position and the
results of the Group.

assess techniques adopted and multiples used for
valuing unlisted available for sale financial assets. As
part of our audit procedures, we used our valuation
experts to assist us in evaluating the expert’s
methodologies and assumptions.

The valuation of unquoted available for sale 2- Evaluating the independence, professional

ﬁ.nancial assets is important to our audit as ?t is qualification and the scope of work of management’s
highly dependent on  estimates (various valuation expert.

assumptions and valuation techniques) which
contain assumptions that are not observable in the

market. Valuation techniques used included Price 3- We evaluated the Price to Book Values and Price to
to Book Value, Price to Earnings, Discounted Earnings used by benchmarking them to comparable
Cash Flows and the Dividend Discount models. companies and market information. In addition, for

valuations performed using Discounted Cash Flows,
we evaluated the growth rates, discount rates and

Management has engaged an external expert to .
terminal growth rates.

assist with the valuations for the level 3 unquoted

available for sale financial assets.

4- We assessed the adequacy of the disclosures in Note 9
and Note 32 of the consolidated financial statements,
particularly on completeness and accuracy of level 2
and 3 assets and related sensitivities.

Refer to Note 9 and Note 32 to the consolidated
Sfinancial statements for the related disclosures.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Board of Directors’
report (but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon), and the
Group’s Annual report, which is expected to be made available to us afier that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. [f, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of
this auditors’ report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. When we read the Group’s annual report, if we conclude
that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with
governance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (Continued)

To the Shareholders of Kuwait Investment Company K.P.S.C. (Continued)
Report on the Audit of the Conselidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted for use by the State of Kuwait, and for
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with [SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

=  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ repott to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT (Continued)

To the Shareholders of Kuwait Investment Company K.P.S.C. (Continued)
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

»  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision angd performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Furthermore, in our opinion, proper books of accounts have been kept by the Parent Company and the
consolidated financial statements, together with the contents of the report of the Board of Directors relating to
these consclidated financial statements, are in accordance therewith. We further report that we obtained all
information and explanations that we required for the purpose of our audit and that the consolidated financial
statements incorporate all information that is required by the Companies Law No. | of 2016 and its Executive
Regulations, as amended, and by the Parent Company's Memorandum of Incorporation and Articles of
Association, as amended, that an inventory count was duly carried out and that, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, no viclations of the Companies Law No. 1 of 2016 and its Executive Regulations,as amended, nor of the
Parent Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation and Articles of Association, as amended, have occurred during
the financial year ended 31 December 2017 that might have had a material effect on the business of the Parent
Company or on its financial position.

We further report that, during the course of our audit to the best of our knowledge and belief, we have not become
aware of any material violations, of the provisions of Law No. 32 of 1968, as amended, concerning currency, the
Central Bank of Kuwait and the organisation of banking business, and its related regulations, or of the provisicns
of Law No. 7 of 2010 concerning the Capital Markets Authority and its related Executive Regulations during the
financial year ended 31 December 2017 that might have had a material effect on the busjgess of the Parent
Company or on its financial position.

Fa—
3
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Qais M. Al-Nisf Khaljd Jbrahim Al-Shatti

License No. 38-A Licghse No. 175-A

BDO Al Nisf & Partners Pricewaterhouse Coopers (Al-Shatti
& Co.)

Kuwait: 8 February 2018
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KUWAIT INVESTMENT COMPANY K.P.S.C. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

State of Kuwait

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF F]NANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2017
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ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Placements

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Accounts receivable and other assets
Wakala receivables

Loans and advances

Financial assets available for sale
Investments held to maturity
Investments in associates

Investment properties

Intangible assets
Property and equipment
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities

Deposits from banks and customers
Islamic financing payables

Accounts payable and other liabilities
Total liabilities

Equity

Share capital

Treasury shares

Statutory reserve

Voluntary reserve

Revaluation reserve

Fair value reserve

Foreign currency translation reserve
Retained earnings

Notes

~1 O\ b

(=3 -]

27
10
11
12

13
14
15

16
17
18
19

Equity attributable te shareholders of the Parent

Company

Non-controlling interests
Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

26

Waleed Abd tan Al-Roumi

Chairman

NN

2017 2016
KD KD
18,830,206 14,309,114
15,351,527 16,292,876
66,729,581 28,352,171
18,309,765 13,989,619
1,843,799 3,093,799
2,837,957 4,915,203
60,152,907 105,146,257
2,987,325 3,034,598
15,641,470 16,273,855
20,715,410 19,054,290
11,042,602 11,042,602
30,367,615 31,430,851
264,810,164 266,935,235
72,855,593 78,910,496
12,876,783 13,864,251
17,949,973 13,780,503
103,682,349 106,555,250
55,125,000 55,125,000
(734,629) (734,629)
28,923,624 27,188,671
18,957,738 17,222,785
4,742,731 5,488,831
2,268,098 13,355,006
2,587,343 2,016,954
15,351,836 6,214,611
127,221,741 125,877,229
33,906,074 34,502,756
161,127,815 - 160,379,985
264,810,164 266,935,235

Bader.N” AlSubaiee
Chief Executive Officer

AN

Mesharl Zatﬁll iﬂl/aled

Deputy Chairman

The notes on pages 12 to 55 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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KUWAIT INVESTMENT COMPANY K.P.S.C. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES A,
State of Kuwait =
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS YR o g
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

2017 2016
Notes KD KD

Income
Management fees and commission income 6,597,460 5,619,800
Dividend income _ ' 2,304,999 1,959,930
Gain on redemption / sale of financial assets available for sale 8,386,883 1,846,305
Interest income 1,003,688 1,350,023
Rental income 20 8,188,574 7,921,255
Unrealised gain on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 2,015,065 397,259
Gain on sale of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 502,984 105,821
Change in fair value of investment properties 10 (170,346} 120,646
Gain on sale of investment properties 10 - 300,000
Gain on sale of a subsidiary ) 26 175,178 -
Share of results of investment in associates 27 . 569,507 362,452
Foreign exchange loss (198,459) {55,430)
Total income ’ 29,375,533 19,928,061
Expenses and other charges
General and administrative expenses 21 (13,940,696) (10,719,219}
Impairment losses 22 (73,975 (2,101,284}
Release of provision for credit losses 23 4,350,813 215,104
Interest expense {1,589,582) (1,700,338)
Total expenses and other charges (11,253,440) (14,305,737)
Operating profit 18,122,093 5,622,324
Other income 24 2,082,469 452,537
Profit before contribution to Kuwait Foundation for the
Advancement of Science {(*KFAS”), National Labour Support Tax
(“NLST”) and Zakat and Board of Directors remuneration 20,204,562 6,074,861
KFAS (143,265) {20,434)
NLST (447,286) (108,870)
Zakat (220,928) (22,146)
Board of Directors remuneration (95,000) (45,000)
Profit for the year 19,298,083 5,878,411
Attributable to:
Shareholders of the Parent Company 16,443,050 3,980,301
Non-controlling interests 26 2,855,033 1,898,110

19,298,083 5,878,411
Earnings per share attributable to Shareholders of the Parent 25
Company (basic and diluted) (fils): 30.006 7.263

The notes on pages 12 to 55 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

2017 2016
Note KD KD

Profit for the year 19,298,083 5,878,411
Other comprehensive (loss) / income:
Ttems that will not be reclassified subsequently to the
consolidated statement profit or loss.
Share of revaluation of property in associate (746,100) .
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss
Financial assets available for sale: _
- Change in fair value (2,725,194) (7,745,345)
- Gain on redemption / sale of financial assets available for sale (8,386,883) {1,846,305)
- Transferred to consolidated statement of profit or loss on

impairment 22 73,975 1,414,020
Share of other comprehensive (loss) / income of investment in
associates (30,690 24,873
Foreign exchange translation adjustments 570,389 (220,519)
Other comprehensive loss for the year (11,244,503) (8,373,276)
Total comprehensive income / (foss) for the year 8,053,580 (2,494,865)
Total comprehensive income / ( loss) attributable to:
Shareholders of the Parent Company 5,180,431 {4,524,826)
Non-controlling interests 2,873,149 2,029,961

8,053,580 {2,494,865)

The notes on pages 12 to 55 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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KUWAIT INVESTMENT COMPANY K.P.S.C AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

State of Kuwait

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT CF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2017
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OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit for the year

Adjustments for:

Dividend income .

Gain on redemption / sale of financial assets available for sale
Interest income

Unrealised gain of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Gain on sale of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Change in fair value of investment properties

Gain on sale of investment properties

Gain on sale of subsidiary

Share of results of investment in associates

Foreign exchange loss

Depreciation

Impairment losses

Release of provision for credit losses

Interest expense

Provision no longer required

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Placements

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Accounts receivable and other assets

Wakala receivables

Loans and advances

Accounts payable and other liabilities

Net cash (used in} / from operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from sale of subsidiary

Purchase of investment properties

Proceeds frotn sale of investment properties
Purchase of property and equipment

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
Purchase of financial assets available for sale
Proceeds from sale of financial assets available for sale
Cash received on capital reduction in an associate
Dividend income received

Interest income received

Net cash flows from investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net movement in banks and customers’ deposits

‘Net movement in islamic financing payables

Net movement in non-controlling interests

Dividend paid to shareholders of the Parent Company
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests

Interest expenses paid

Net cash flows used in financing activities

Effect of foreign currency translation adjustments

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year
Non-cash transactions

Accounts receivable and other assets

The notes on pages 12 to 55 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,

11

Notes

10
10
26
27

12
22

24

26
10
10
12

7

2017 2016
KD KD
19,298,083 5,878,411

(2,304,999)
(8,386,883)

(1,959,930)
(1,846,305)

(1,003,688) (1,350,023)
(2,015,065) (397.,259)
(502,984) (105,821)
170,346 (120,646)
- (300,000)
(175,178) -
(569,507) (362,452)
198,459 55,430
5,410,211 4,691,511
73,975 2,101,284
(2,255,091) (264,604)
1,589,582 1,700,334
(1,500,000) -
8,027,261 7,719,930
941,349 3,608,970
(35.859,361) 1,291,952
(290,814) (5,224,021)
500,000 -
313,366 (618,217)
5,610,088 (374,455)
(20,758,111) 6,404,159
1,025,000 -
(2,070,098) {4,027,280)
- 3,905,731
(6,799,438) (8,052,097)
2,452,463 2,175,660
(32,823,345) (19,274,183)
75,632,470 27,974,707
- 813,471
2,529,346 2,182,123
993,327 1,225,992
40,939,725 6,924,124

{6,085,212)

(26,767,221)

(987,468) (374,913)
(2,734,831) .
(3,786,525) (52,874)

(735,000) (441,000)
(1,579,594) (1,607,035)
{15,908,630) (29,243,043)
248,108 (11,688)
4,521,092 (15,926.448)
14,309,114 30,235,562
18,830,206 14,309,114
4,817,266 -
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1.

2.1

GENERAL INFORMATION

Kuwait Investment Company K.P.S.C. (“the Parent Company”) is a public shareholding investment
company incorporated under the laws of the State of Kuwait by virtue of memorandum of association
No.29 on 25 November 1961, and registered in the commercial registry under No.4340 on 22 May
1962. Its registered office is at Souk Al Manakh, Mubarak Al Kabeer Street, Kuwait and its mailing
address is P.O. Box 1005 Safat, 13011 — State of Kuwait. The Parent Company’s major shareholder is
Kuwait Investment Authority. The Parent Company is listed on the Kuwait Stock Exchange and is
governed under the directions of the Central Bank of Kuwait (*CBK”) and the Capital Markets
Authority of Kuwait ("CMA").

The Parent Company’s objectives as per the Memorandum of Incorporation and Articles of
Association are as follows:

o Investment and increase of its shareholders and clients’ savings and the loans concluded through
employing them in financial securities, rights, royalties, properties, assets and other movables and
immovables of all types at its own discretion.

e Participating in incorporation of other companies to realise profit in accordance with law and
assisting in incorporation of these companies.

« Sale of shares and bonds of companies and governmental and semi-governmental institutions.

To conduct research and surveys related to the employment of capital and provide all the services
related to investment operations and third party employment, including:

- Securities broker not registered in the Securities Exchange.

- Investment Portfolio Manager.

- Collective Investment Scheme Manager.

- Custodian.

- Investment controller.

- Subscription agent.

The Parent Company is authorised to have interest in or participate with institutions carrying out
similar activities or those parties who will assist it in achieving its objective whether in Kuwait or
abroad in accordance with the provisions of this Memorandum of Incorporation and Articles of
Association,

The Extraordinary General Assembly held on 4 April 2016 approved the change in the Parent
Company's objectives.

The consolidated financial statements of Kuwait Investment Company K.P.S.C (“the Parent
Company”) and. its subsidiaries (“the Group”) for the financial year ended 31 December 2017 were
authorised for issuance by the board of directors on 08 February 2018 and are subject to the approval
at the Annual General Assembly.

The Parent Company had 130 employees as at 31 December 2017 (2016: 122 employees).

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

These consolidate‘d financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention
except for “financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”, “financial assets available for sale”

and “investment properties” which have been measured at fair value.

Thesg consolidated financial statements have been presented in Kuwaiti Dinars (“KD”), which is the
functional and presentation currency of the Group.

12
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2.

2.2

2.3

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Ceontinued)
Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(“1ASB™), IFRIC interpretations, and applicable requiremnents of Ministerial Order No. 18 of 1990, as
modified for use by the State of Kuwait for financial services institutions regulated by the Central
Bank of Kuwait. These regulations require the adoption of all IFRSs except for the International
Accounting Standard (“IAS”) 39 requirement for coellective impairment provision, which has been
replaced by the CBK requirement for a minimum general provision as described under the
accounting policy for impairment of financial assets.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in compliance with adopted IFRS requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires the Group’s management to exercise
judgment in applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas of significant judgments and
estimates made in preparing the consolidated financial statements and their effect are disclosed in
Note 3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (IFRSs)

New standards, interpretations and amendments effective from 1 January 2017

The accounting policies applied by the Group are consistent with those used in the previous year
except for the changes due to implementation of the following new and amended International
Financial Reporting Standards:

Amendment to IAS 7 — Disclosure Initiative

The amendment to this standard which is effective prospectively for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2017 require an entity to provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements
to evaluate changes in liability arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from
cash flows and non-cash changes.

The adoption of these amendments did not have any material impact on the current period.

Amendments to IAS 12 — Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses

The amendments to this standard which are effective retrospectively for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2017 clarify that an entity needs to consider whether tax law restricts the sources
of taxable profits against which it may make deductions on the reversal of that deductible temporary
difference. Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance on how an entity should determine future
taxable profits and explain the circumstances in which taxable profit may include the recovery of
some assets for more than their carrying amount.

The adoption of these amendments did not have any material impact on the current period.
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014 — 2016 Cycle:

Amendments to IFRS 12 - Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

IFRS 12 states that an entity need not provide summarized financial information for interests in
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures that are classified (or included in a disposal group that is
classified) as held for sale. The amendments clarify that this is the only concession from the
disclosure requirements of IFRS 12 for such interests.

13
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.3 APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (IFRSs) {Continued)
b) Standards and interpretations issued but not effective

The following new and amended IASB Standards have been issued but are not yet effective, and
have not been adopted by the Group:

Amendments to IFRS 2 - Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions

This standard will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 Januvary 2018, the
amendments

address three main areas:

e The effects of vesting conditions on the measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment
transaction

e The classification of a share-based payment transaction with net settlement features for
withholding tax obligations

¢ The accounting where a modification to the terms and conditions of a share-based payment
transaction changes its classification from cash-settled to equity-seitled.

These amendments are not expected to have any material impact to the Group.

IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

The standard, effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, replaces the
existing guidance in IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. IFRS 9 addresses
the classification, measurement and derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities,
introduces new rules for hedge accounting and a new impairment model for financial assets.

The Group has reviewed its financial assets and liabilities and is expecting the following impact
from the adoption of the new standard on 1 January 2018:

The Group’s debt instruments that are currently classified as available-for-sale will be reclassified to
the amortized cost and hence there will be no change to the accounting for these assets. However,
certain investments in shares do not meet the criteria to be classified ecither as at FVOCI or at
amortised cost and KD 21.184M. will have to be reclassified to financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (FVPL). Related fair value gains of KD 3.659M. will have to be transferred from the
fair value reserve to retained earnings on 1 January 2018.

The other financial assets held by the Group include:

- equity instruments currently classified as AFS for which a FVOCI election is available

- equity investments currently measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL) which will
continue to be measured on the same basis under IFRS 9, and

- debt instruments currently classified as held-to-maturity and measured at amortised cost which
meet the conditions for classification at amortised cost under IFRS 9.

Accordingly, the Group does not expect the new guidance to affect the classification and
measurement of these financial assets. However, gains or losses realised on the sale of financial
assets at FVOCI will no longer be transferred to profit or loss on sale, but instead reclassified from
the FVOCI reserve to retained earnings. During the 2017 financial year, KD 8.387M. of such gains
were recognised in profit or loss in relation to the disposal of available-for-sale financial assets.



r"—*r*r’*r‘*r—‘r—*r-—'r”r—'r—"r'r-"‘r—'r—'r-—'r-*r-r—'r—-r—r—-l

KUWAIT INVESTMENT COMPANY K.P.S.C. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES A
State of Kuwait ' %
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS iﬂ;w“ﬁﬁ‘;’%ﬁﬁ%l
For the year ended 31 December 2017 el Spbllantale 58
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued}
23 APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (IFRSs) {Continued)
b) Standards and interpretations issued but not effective (continued)

IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (continued)

There will be no impact on the Group’s accounting for financial liabilities, as the new requirements
only affect the accounting for financial liabilities that are designated at fair value through profit or
loss and the Group does not have any such liabilities. The derecognition rules have been transferred
from IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and have not been changed.

The new impairment model requires the recognition of impairment provisions based on expected
credit losses (ECL) rather than only incurred credit losses as is the case under IAS 39. 1t applies to
financial assets classified at amortised cost, debt instruments measured at FVOCI, contract assets
under IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, lease receivables, loan commitments and
certain financial guarantee contracts. Based on the assessments undertaken to date, the Group
expects a small increase in the loss allowance for trade receivable and loans and advances by
approximately 5% and 10% respectively and in relation to debt investments held at amortised cost.
The new standard also introduces expanded disclosure requirements and changes in presentation.
These are expected to change the nature and extent of the Group’s disclosures about its financial
instruments particularly in the year of the adoption of the new standard.

IFRS 15 - Revenue from contracts with customers

The standard, effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, establishes a
comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognized. It
replaces the following existing standards and interpretations upon its effective date:

IAS 18 — Revenue,

IAS 11 — Construction Contracts,

IFRIC 13 — Customer Loyalty Programs,

[FRIC 15 — Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate,

1IFRIC 18 — Transfers of Assets from Customers, and,

SIC 31 — Revenue-Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services.

4 & & & & °

The Group is currently assessing the impact of IFRS 15 and plans to adopt the new standard on the
required effective date.

IFRS 16 - Leases

This standard will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. This
standard will be replacing IAS 17 "Leases"” and will require lessees to account for all leases under a
single on-balance sheet model in a similar way to finance leases under IAS 17 with limited
exceptions for low-value assets and short term leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee
will recognize a liability to make lease payments and an asset representing the right to use the
underlying asset during the lease term.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of IFRS 16 and plans to adopt the new standard on the
required effective date.

IFRS 17 — Insurance Contracis

This standard will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 and replaces
IFRS 4 - Insurance Contracts. The new standard applies to all types of insurance contracts,
regardless of the type of entities that issue them, as well as to certain guarantees and financial
instruments with discretionary participation features. The core of IFRS 17 is the general model,
supplemented by:

a) A specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features (Variable fee approach)

b} A simplified approach (premium allocation approach) mainly for short duration contracts

These amendments are not expected to have any material impact to the Group.

15
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2.

23

b)

24

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (IFRSs) (Continued)

Standards and interpretations issued but not effective {continued)

IFRIC 22 - Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

The interpretation will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 and
clarifies that in determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset,
expense or income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a nonmonetary asset or non-monetary
liability relating to advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which an entity
initially recognizes the non-monetary asset or nonmonetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, then the entity must determine a
date of the transactions for each payment or receipt of advance consideration.

These amendments are not expected to have any material impact to the Group.

Amendments to IAS 28 — Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendments should be applied retrospectively and are effective from 1 January 2018, with
earlier application permitted.

The amendments clarify that:

a) An entity that is a venture capital organisation, or other qualifying entity, may elect, at initial
recognition on an investment-by-investment basis, to measure its investments in associates and
joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss.

b) If an entity that is not itself an investment entity has an interest in an associate or joint venture
that is an investment entity, the entity may, when applying the equity method, elect to retain the
fair value measuremnent applied by that investment entity associate or joint venture to the
investment entity associate’s or joint venture’s interests in subsidiaries. This election is made
separately for each investment entity associate or joint venture, at the later of the date on which
(i) the investment entity associate or joint venture is initially recognised; (ii) the associate or
joint venture becomes an investment entity; and (iii) the investment entity associate or joint
venture first becomes a parent.

These amendments are not expected to have any material impact to the Group.

Amendments to IAS 40 - Transfers of Investment Property

The amendment will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 and clarify
when an entity should transfer property, including property under construction or development, into
or out of investment property. The amendments state that a change in use occurs when the property
meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment property and there is evidence of the change in
use. A mere change in management’s intentions for the use of a property does not provide evidence
of a change in use.

These amendments are not expected to have any material impact to the Group.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries drawn up
to 31 December 2017 (see Note 26). All subsidiaries have a reporting date of 31 December.

Where the Parent Company has control over an investee, it is classified as a subsidiary. The Parent
Company controls an investee if all three of the following elements are present: power over the
investee, exposure to variable returns from the investee and the ability of the investor to use its
power to affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and circumstances
indicate that there may be a change in any of these elements of control.

16
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24

25

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

De-facto control exists in situations where the Parent Company has the practical ability to direct the

relevant activities of the investee without holding the majority of the voting rights. In determining

whether de-facto control exists the Parent Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances,

including;:

- The size of the Parent Company’s voting rights relative to both the size and dispersion of other
parties who hold voting rights

- Substantive potential voting rights held by the company and by other parties

- Other contractual arrangements

- Historic patterns in voting attendance.

The Parent Company reassess whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the three components of controls listed above.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the
date that control effectively commences unti! the date that control effectively ceases. The financial
statements of the subsidiaries are consolidated on a line-by-line basis by adding together like items of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Intercompany balances and transactions are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

Financial statements of subsidiaries are adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with the
accounting policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are identified separately from
the Group’s equity therein.

Non-controlling interests consist of amount of those interests at the date of original business
combination and the non-controliing entity’s share of changes in equity since the date of the
combination.

Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the non-controlling interests even if that results in a deficit
balance. Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group
losing contral over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. For purchases from non-
controlling interests, the difference between any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of
the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals of
non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity. When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities (i.e. reclassified to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss or transferred directly to retained earnings as specified by applicable IFRSs).

Business combinations

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The
consideration transferred in a business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred or
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and equity instruments issued by the
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally expensed as
incurred. At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed and
contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition under IFRS 3 Business Combinations are
recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date.

17
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2.

2.5

2.6

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Business combinations (continued)

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business combination includes assets or
liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is
measured at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the consideration transferred in a
business combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as
measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with corresponding adjustments against
goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the ‘measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date)
about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that do not
qualify as measurement period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not measured at subsequent reporting dates and
its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as
an asset or a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in accordance with 1AS 39, or IAS
37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with the corresponding
gain or loss being recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed.

If, after reassessment, the net of the acquisition date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed exceeds the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the
acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

If the initial accounting for business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in
which the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement period (see
above), or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts
recognised at that date.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains
control) and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss,
Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to consolidated statement of profit or loss
where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest was disposed of.

Financial assets

Classification, initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as "financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss”, “loans and receivables” ,"available for sale financial assets” and “investment held to
maturity”. The classification depends on the purpose for which financial assets were acquired and it is

determined at initial recognition.

Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not
carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss
are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6

Financial assets {continued)

Classification, initial recognition and measurement {continued)

A “reguiar way” purchase of financial assets is recognised using the trade date accounting. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame generally established by regulations or conventions in the market place.

The Group's financial assets include cash and cash equivalents, placements, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, accounts receivable and other assets, wakala receivables, loans and
advances, available for sale financial assets and investments held to maturity.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents as per the consolidated statement of cash flows consist of cash on hand,
current accounts with banks, short-term deposits with an original maturity of less than three months
and cash at investment portfolios.

Placements
Placements represent deposits with banks due within three months or more from the placement date
and earn interest.

Financial assets as fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset at fair value through profit or loss includes financial assets held for trading and
financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated
at their initial recognition date and only if the criteria under 1AS 39 are satisfied. Financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate method amortisation and
the losses arising from impairment are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets available for sale

Financial assets available for sale include equity and debt securities. Equity investments classified as
financial assets available for sale are those which are neither classified as held for trading nor
designated at fair value through profit or loss. Debt securities in this category are those which are
intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in respense to need for
liquidity or in response to changes in the market conditions.

After initial recognition, available for sale financial assets are measured at fair value with unrealised
gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income until the investment is derecognised, at which
time the cumulative gain or loss is recycled in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, or
determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative loss is reclassified to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets available for sale whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are carried at cost less
impairment losses, if any.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6

Financial assets (continued)

Investments held to maturity

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity which the
Group has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity, other than those that the Group upon
initial recognition designates at fair value through profit or loss, available for sale or those that meet
the definition of loans and receivables, are classified as held to maturity.

Investments held to maturity are measured initially at their transaction price, including transaction
costs and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less
impairment losses, if any.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised when:

» The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

* The Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying .amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or
more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and
that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that
the borrowers or a group of borrowers is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation and where observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.

Loans and advances

Loans and advances are subject to credit risk provision for loan impairment if there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due. The amount of the provision is the
difference between the carrying amount and the recoverable amount, being the present vaiue of
expected future cash flows, including amount recoverable from guarantee and collateral, discounted
based on the contractual interest rate. The amount of loss arising from impairment is taken to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

In addition, in accordance with CBK instructions, a minimum general provision of 1% for cash

facilities and 0.5% for non-cash facilities are made on all applicable credit facilities (net of certain
categories of collateral), that are not provided for specifically.
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2.

2.6

2.7

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Wakala receivables

Wakala is an agreement whereby the Group, under an agency agreement, provides a sum of money to
a customer who invests it according to specific conditions in return for a fee. The agent is obliged to
return the amount in case of default, negligence or violation of any terms and conditions of the
wakala.

Wakala receivables are initially measured at fair value (transaction price). Subsequent to initial
recognition, these are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less
impairment losses.

Financial assets available for sale

In the case of equity investmments classified as financial assets available for sale, objective evidence
would include a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the equity investment below its
cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on those financial assets
available for sale previously recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Impairment losses on equity investments are not reversed through the consolidated statement of profit
or loss; increases in their fair value after impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income. In the case of debt instruments classified as financial assets available for sale, impairment is
assessed based on the same criteria as financial assets carried at amortised cost. However, the amount
recorded for impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference between the amortised cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Investment in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting, except when the investment is classified as held for
sale, in which case it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations. Under the equity method, an investment in an associate is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate.
When the Group’s share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate, the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate recognised at the date of acquisition is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the investment.

Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and

contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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2.

2.7

2.8

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Investment in associates (Continued)

The requirements of 1AS 39 are applied to determine whether it is necessary to recognise any
impairment loss with respect to the Group’s investment in an associate. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
1AS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in
accordance with 1AS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

When a Group entity transacts with its associate, profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the extent of
interests in the associate that are not related to the Group.

The associate financial statements are prepared either to the Parent Company’s reporting date or to a
date not longer than three months of the Parent Company’s reporting date. Amounts reported in the
financial statements of associates have been adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with the
accounting policies adopted by the Group. Where practicable, adjustments are made for the effect of
significant transactions or other events that occurred between the reporting date of the associates and
the Parent Company’s reporting date.

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental vields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not
occupied by the companies in the consolidated Group, is classified as investment property. Investment
property also includes property that is being constructed or developed for future use as investment

property.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs.

Afier initial recognition, investment properties are re-measured at fair value.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other things, rental income from current leases
and other assumptions market participants would make when pricing the property under current
market conditions.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.
When part of an investment property is replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Investment
properties are derecognised when they have been disposed.

Investment properties are derecognised when either they have been disposed of or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected
from its disposal. Gains or losses arising on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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2.

2.9

2.10

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Intangible assets

Intangible assets are measured on initial recognition at historical cost. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. The useful lives of the intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or
indefinite. Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised over the useful economic life and
tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised but tested for impairment annually and

 whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The Group’s intangible

assets are with indefinite lives.

If the carrying value of the intangible asset is more than the recoverable amount, the intangible asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. The excess of carrying value over
recoverable amount is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment except land are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items. Land is carried at revalued amounts.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of those parts
that are replaced is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Transfers from investment property to property and equipment are made when the management
decides a change in use and becomes owner-occupied property.

Depreciation of property and equipment is calculated using the straight-line methed to allocate their
cost or revalued amounts to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 10 years
Motor vehicles 3-4 years
Computer hardware and software 4 years
Office equipment and machinery 4 years
Furniture and fixtures 4 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year-end. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount
if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount,

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property and equipment is

determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which it occurs.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.11 Impairment of non—financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for
use are tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be
impaired.

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

For a non-financial asset, other than goodwill, in which impairment subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (cash
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

2.12 Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as financial liabilities at “fair value
through profit or loss”™ or “borrowings”. The Group determines the classification of its financial
liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value. Borrowings are initially recognised at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised
as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw- own occurs.

To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of
the facility to which it relates,

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include borrowings (deposits from banks and customers), Islamic
financing payables and accounts payable and other liabilities. The Group classifies its financial
liabilities as borrowings and does not classify any financial liabilities at “fair value through profit or
loss™.

Borrowings

Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
Gains or losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate method (EIR) amortisation process.

Islamic financing payable

fjara payables

They are an Islamic transaction involving purchase and immediate lease of an asset where the lessor
conveys to the lessee the right to use the asset for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or
series of payments. At the end of the lease term the lessee has the option to purchase the aséet.
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2.

2.12

2.13

2.14

2.15

2.16

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)

Murabaha payables

Murabaha payables are initially recognised at the value received from contracts. After initial
recognition, murabaha payables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method. The effective interest rate is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
and of allocating cost over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset, or, when
appropriate, a shorter period.

Accounts payable and other liabilities

Liabilities are recognised for amount to be paid in the future for goods or services received, whether
billed or not. Accounts payable and other liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Employees end of service benefits

The Group is liable under Kuwaiti Labor Law, to make payments to the employees for post
employment benefits through defined benefits plan. Such payment is made on a lump sum basis at the
end of an employee’s service. This liability is unfunded and has been computed as the amount payable
as a result of involuntary termination of the company’s employees on the financial position date. The
Group expects this method to produce a reliable approximation of the present value of this obligation.

With respect to its Kuwaiti national employees, the Group makes contributions to the Public
Institution for Social Security calculated as a percentage of the employees’ salaries. The Group’s
obligations are limited to these contributions, which are expensed when due.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) arising from
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and the
costs to settle has been reliably estimated.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legai right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of defauit, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the counterparty.

Treasury shares

Treasury shares consist of the Parent Company’s own shares that have been issued, subsequently
reacquired by the Parent Company and not yet reissued or cancelled. The treasury shares are
accounted for using the cost method. Under the cost method, the weighted average cost of the shares
reacquired is charged to a contra equity account. When the treasury shares are reissued, gains are
credited to a separate account in equity (gain on sale of treasury shares) which is not distributable.
Any realised losses are charged to the same account to the extent of the credit balance on that account.
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2.

2.16

217

2.18

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Treasury shares (Continued)

Any excess losses are charged to retained earnings then reserves. Gains realised subsequently on the
sale of treasury shares are first used to offset any previously recorded losses in the order of reserves,
retained earnings and the gain on sale of treasury shares account. No cash dividends are paid on these
shares. The issue of bonus shares increases the number of treasury shares proportionately and reduces
the average cost per share without affecting the total cost of treasury shares.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue can be reliably measured regardless of when the payment is being made.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account
contractually defined term of payment and excluding tax or duty.

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised.

Management fees and commission income

Fees and commission income earned for the proviston of services over a period of time are accrued
over that period. These include management fees, advisory fees and commission income, arising from
the Group’s management of portfolios, funds, custody and similar trust and fiduciary activities.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for all interest bearing
instruments on effective interest method. The calculation inciudes all contractual term of the financial
instrument and includes any fees or incremental costs that are directly attributable to the instrument
and are an integral part of the interest rate, but not future credit losses.

Once a financial instrument categorised, as 'available for sale financial assets ' or 'loans and receivable
is impaired, interest is thereafier recognised using the original effective interest rate used to discount
the future cash flow for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

Revenue from sale of vehicles
Revenue from sale of vehicles is recognised on compietion of the sale process, which is finalised
when all benefits and risks of ownership are transferred to the buyer.

Leases

Where the Group is the lessee

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor
are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.

Where the Group is the lessor
When assets are leased out under an operating lease, the asset is included in the consolidated statement
of financial position based on the nature of the asset.

Lease income on operating leases is recognised over the term of the lease on a straight-line basis.

Fiduciary assets

Assets held in trust or in a fiduciary capacity are not treated as assets of the Group and, accordingly,
are not included in these consoclidated financial statements.

26



r—-r—r—“r"rﬂr—"r—-r‘r—'r‘“r“r—r—'l—*r-*r—'r-*r“r“r‘*r*l

KUWAIT INVESTMENT COMPANY K.P.S.C. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES A
State of Kuwait %
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ot Ml Ao

For the year ended 31 December 2017

1961 L diiHy dppdll pn lalc 55

2.

2.19

2.20

2.21

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional
currency’). The consolidated financial statements are presented in “Kuwaiti dinars (KD), which is the
Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into KD at rates of exchange prevailing
at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated into KD at rates of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period. The resultant
exchange differences are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities, transactions in currencies other than the
entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. At each financial reporting date, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the financial position date. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in

which they arise except for:

= exchange differences which relate to assets under construction for future productive use, which are
included in the cost of those assets where they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on
foreign currency borrowings;

v exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation for
which settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur, which form part of the net investment in a
foreign operation, and which are recognised in the foreign currency translation reserve and
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on disposal of the net investment.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are expressed in KD using exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date,
income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuated significantly during that period in which case the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are charged / credited to other
comprehensive income and recognised in the Group’s foreign currency translation reserve within
equity. On disposal of a foreign operation the exchange differences recognised in equity are
reclassified to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and recognised as part of the gain or loss on
disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated into KD at the closing rate. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in the consolidated other comprehensive income.

Interest expense

All borrowing costs, other than those directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Taxes

The Parent Company is legally required to contribute to the Kuwait Foundation for the Advancement
of Sciences (“KFAS”). The Group’s contributions to KFAS are recognised as an expense in the period
during which the Group’s contribution is legally required. KFAS is imposed at 1% of net profit
attributable to the equity holders of the Parent Company, less permitted deductions.
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2.21

222

2.23

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Taxes (continued)

National Labour Support Tax

The Parent Company calculates National Labour Support Tax (“NLST”) in accordance with the
Ministry of Finance resolution No.19 of 2000. NLST is imposed at 2.5% of net profit attributable to
the equity holders of the Parent Company, less permitted deductions.

Zakat

The Parent Company has provided for Zakat in accordance with the requirements of Law No. 46 of
2006. Zakat is imposed at 1% of net profit attributable to the equity holders of the Parent Company,
less permitted deductions.

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position, but are
disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefit is remote.

Contingent asset are not recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position, but are
disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Segment information

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that engages in business activities from which
it earns revenue and incurs cost. The operating segments used by the management of the Group to
allocate resources and assess performance are consistent with the internal report provided to the chief
operating decision maker. Operating segment exhibiting similar economic characteristic, product and
services, class of customers where appropriate are aggregated and reported as reportable segments.

SIGNIFICANT JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets
and liabilities at the reporting date. However, uncertainty about the assumptions and estimate could
result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the amount of the asset or liability reported in
future period.

Judgments

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the following
judgments, apart from those invelving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amount recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Classification of financial instruments
Judgments are made in the classification of financial instruments based on the management's
intentions on acquisition.

Liabilities from operating leases — the Group as a lessor

The Group enters into vehicle leasing contracts with the clients. Based on its evaluation of the terms
and conditions of the contractual arrangements with the clients, the Group decided to maintain all the
material risks and benefits of owning these leased vehicles. Therefore, these leases are accounted for
as operating leases.

Impairment of available for sale financial assets

The Group treats the available for sale financial assets as impaired when there has been a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost. The determination of what is “significant” or
“prolonged” requires judgment. In addition, the Group also evaluates among other factors, normal
volatility in the share price for quoted investments and the future cash flows and the discount factors
for unquoted investments.
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SIGNIFICANT JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)
Judgments (continued)

Consolidation of entities in which the group holds less than 50%.
Management considers that the Group has de facto control of KIC Financial Brokerage K.S.C
(Closed) even though it has less than 50% of the voting rights. The Group is the majority shareholder
of KIC Financial Brokerage K.S.C (Closed) with a 45.47% equity interest, while all other
shareholders individually own less than 11.16% of its equity shares. There is no history of other
shareholders forming a Group to exercise their votes collectively.

Management considers that the Group has de facto control of KIC Global Bond Fund even though it
has less than 50% of the voting rights because it is the fund manager and all relevant operating and
financial decisions are taken by the fund manager.

The Group achieved power over the investee company Al Masar Leasing and Investment Company
K.S.C. (Closed) by appoiniment of four board members including the chairman of the board of
directors out of a total board members of eight. The Group has considered the power achieved through
absolute voting rights is sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee company, despite the fact they have less than 50% holding.

Estimation uncertainty and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant impact causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

Vaiuation of unquoted financial assets

Valuation of unquoted equity investments is normally based on one of the following:

= recent arm’s length market transactions;

= current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same;

* earnings multiple;

v the expected cash flows discounted at current rates applicable for items with similar terms and risk
characteristics;

= price to book value model; or

= other valuation models.

Impairment loss on accounts receivable and other assets, loans and advances and investments in debt
instruments

The Group reviews accounts receivable, loans and advances and investments in debt instruments on a
quarterly basis to assess any indications of impairment and if a provision for impairinent should be
recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Such estimates are necessarily based on
assumptions about several factors involving varying degrees of uncertainty, and actual results may
differ resulting in future changes to such provisions.

Revenue recognition

The Group uses the time proportion method in accounting for services. Using the time proportion
method in accounting for the revenues requires the Group to estimate the services provided to the
clients to date according to the provisions of the Group activities. The Group takes into consideration
retaining provisions necessary for any expected doubtful receivables resulting from these services.

Fair value measurement of investment properties

Investment properties of the Group are measured at fair value for the purposes of preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Group management determines the main appropriate techniques and
inputs required for measuring the fair value. In determining the fair value of the investment properties,
management uses observable market data and as appropriate, the Group uses an external valuer
qualified to do the valuation. Information regarding the required valuation techniques and inputs used
to determine the fair value of investment properties are disclosed in Note 10.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty and assumptions (continned)

Impairment of non-financial assets

An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. The fair
value less costs to sell calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions in an
arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for
disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow model. The
cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring
activities that the Group is not yet committed to or significant future investrments that will enhance the
asset’s performance of the cash generating unit being tested. The recoverable amount is most sensitive
to the discount rate used for the discounted cash flow model as well as the expected future cash-
inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

Useful lives of property and equipment

As described in accounting policies the Group reviews the estimated useful lives over which its
property and equipment’s are depreciated. The Group’s management is satisfied that the estimates of
useful lives are appropriate.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually as at 31 December
either individually or at the CGU level, as appropriate, and when circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2017 2016

KD KD -
Cash at banks, in portfolios and on hand 13,186,935 6,265,293
Placements maturing within three months 5,643,271 8,043,821

18,830,206 14,309,114

Placements are made with financial institutions and carry an average effective interest rate of 1.80 %
{2016: 0.63 %) per annum.

PLACEMENTS
Placements represent deposit with a local bank in Kuwait with a maturity over a period exceeding
three months from the date of the placement. The average effective interest rate on Placements is 2.45

% (2016: 1.25 %) per annum.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2017 2016

KD KD
Quoted securities 11,784,707 2,675,277
Unquoted securities 1,265,394 1,543,665
Managed funds 53,679,480 24,133,229
66,729,581 28,352,171

The fair value of investments at fair value through profit or loss was determined based on valuation
levels mentioned in Note 31.
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7.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND OTHER ASSETS

2017 2016
KD KD
Trade receivable 9,603,520 8,016,733
Less: provision for impairment {3.897,011) (3,884,209
5,706,509 4,132,524
Amounts due from brokers 4,708,538 6,938,892
Management fees receivable 1,624,608 1,281,699
Prepayments and deposits 885,277 1,127,435
Advance payment for purchase of investments 588,124 -
Interest receivable 315,766 265,615
Accrued income 127,084 78,890
Others* 4,353,859 164,564
18,309,765 13,989,619

*During the year, the Group received a 22.967 % share in a foreign property as part of settlement of foreign
loan, with a total value of KD 4,067,266 (Note 8). The Group has signed an agreement with the other joint-
owners of the property to manage and develop the property through an agent party (a joint-owner of the

property).

Trade receivable are expected to be realised within a period of one year. At the reporting date, the
Parent Company had no trade receivable that are past due but not impaired. At the reporting date, the
subsidiaries had trade receivable amounting to KD 1,562,448 (2016: KD 1,335,448) which were past
due but not impaired.

The total trade receivable which has been fully provided for amounted to KD 3,467,732 (2016: KD
3,519,097).

At 31 December 2017, the carrying value of accounts receivable approximates their fair values.
Movement in provision for impairment of trade receivable during the year:

2017 2016
KD KD
Balance at 1 January 3,884,209 3,795,775
Charge for the year (Note 23) 63,295 58,152
Foreign exchange differences (50,493) 30,282
Balance at 31 December 3,897,011 3,884,209
LOANS AND ADVANCES
The composition of the loans and advances portfolio is as follows:
2017 2016
KD KD
International 6,165,737 10,449,397
Domestic 15,837,665 16,023,770
22,003,402 26,473,167
Less : provision for credit losses (19,165,445) (21,557,964)
2,837,957 4,915,203

During the year, the Parent Company settled one of its international loans amounted to KD 4,012,633
with the party for a share in a foreign property valued at KD 4,067,266 (Note 7). The settlement
resulted in reversal of provision of KDD 2,005,984,
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8.

LOANS AND ADVANCES (Continued)

Movement in provision for credit losses of loans and advances during the year:

Specific Specific
General provision — provision —
provision post liberation  pre-invasion Total
KD KD KD KD

Balance at 1 January 2016 13,679 16,086,906 5,826,015 21,926,600
Provision / (reversal of provision)
during the year (Note 23) 15,039 (573,426) - (558,387)
Foreign exchange differences 402 177,250 12,099 189,751
Balance at 31 December 2016. 29,120 15,690,730 5,838,114 21,557,964
Reversal of provision during the
year (Note 23) - (2,303,386) - (2,303,386)
Foreign exchange differences {452) (32,424) (56,257) {89,133)
Balance at 31 December 2017 28,668 13,354,920 5,781,857 19,165,445

All loans are term loans granted to companies, financial institutions and individuals and are
denominated in KD, US Dollars and Bahraini Dinars.

Provision for credit losses is made in accordance with Central Bank of Kuwait requirements including
general provision on the balance of regular facilities for which no specific provisions are made.

The total non-performing loans and advances which have been fully provided for amounts to
KD 19,136,777 (2016: KD 19,496,511).

The average interest rate on loans and advances is 4.75% (2016: 3.75% to 13%) per annum. Interest

- income includes KD Nil (2016: KD 240,236) received on impaired loans and advances.

The carrying amount of loans and advances which are past due but not impaired is Nil (2016: KD
2,032,335). At 31 December 2017, management estimates the fair value of collaterals held against
past due or impaired loans and advances to reasonably approximate KD 3,580,000 (2016: KD
15,802,000).

FINANCIAL ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR SALE

2017 2016

KD KD
Equity instruments:
Quoted securities 3,680,005 4,230,628
Unquoted securities 44,189,092 57,376,670
Managed funds 9,922,959 40,637,747
Debt instruments:
Unguoted bonds 2,360,851 2,901,212

60,152,907 105,146,257

During the year, the Group re(;ognised an impairment loss of KD 73,975 {2016: KD 1,414,020) in
respect certain financial assets available for sale in consolidated statement of profit or loss (Note 22).

It was not possible to determine the fair value of certain unquoted securities amounting to KD
1,728,995 (2016: KD 5,577,594) and hence these investments are stated at cost less impatrment losses,
if any.

Certain financial assets available for sale investments of a subsidiary with the carrying amount of KD
893,253 (2016: KD 897,183) has been mortgaged as a collateral against the murabaha payable (Note
14).
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10.

11.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

2017 2016

KD KD
Balance at 1 January 19,054,290 18,441,222
Additions during the year 2,820,098 4,027,280
Disposals during the year (867,755) (3,605,731)
Effect of foreign exchange differences (120,877) 70,873
Change in fair value (170,346) 120,646
20,715,410 19,054,290

Certain investment properties with a fair value of KD 850,000 (2015: KD 2,293,900) have been mortgaged
as collateral against certain Islamic financing payables {(Note 14).

During the previous year; one of the subsidiaries sold investment properties costing KD 3,605,731 for
KD 3,905,731 and recorded a gain of KD 300,000 in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Local investment properties are valued based on two valuation reports, one from a local bank who has
valued the investment property using the market comparison approach and the other is a local
reputable accredited valuer who has valued the investment property using the sales comparison
approach and the yield approach.

Foreign investment properties are also valued based on two valuation reports both of which are from
foreign reputable accredited valuers who have valued the investment properties using the sales
comparison approach which is categorised as level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.

For the valuation purpose, the Group has selected the lower of these two valuations as at the reporting
date.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets represent brokerage license and other intangible assets, which have an indefinite life
and are stated at cost less impairment,

Management has performed an assessment of the intangible assets recoverable amount as at the
reporting date based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections as per the financial
budgets of the cash generating unit and assuming an annual growth rate in revenues ranging of
approximately 20% for a period of 5 years. A pre-tax discount rate of 9 % (2016: 9%} per annum was
used to discount the cash flow projections and a growth rate of 3 % (2016: 3.5%) per annum was used
in arriving at the terminal value.

The assessment indicated that the recoverable amount of the intangible assets approximates KD
11,894,530 (2016: KD 11,199,134) which was above the carrying amount at the reporting date, and
accordingly no impairment loss (2016: Nil} was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

If the estimated discount rate for the CGUs had been 5% (2016:5%) higher than management’s
estimates, the recoverable amount of the Group’s CGUs will be lower by KD 931,495 (2016: KD
956,172). Management determined budgeted gross margin based on past performance and its
expectations of market development. The weighted average growth rates used are consistent with the
forecasts included in industry reports. The discount rates used reflect specific risks relating to the
industry.
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13. DEPOSITS FROM BANKS AND CUSTOMERS
2017 2016
KD KD
Deposits from banks _ 30,504,173 31,037,250
Deposits from customers 42351420 47,873,246
72,855,593 78,910,496
Deposits from bank represents deposits made with local and foreign banks and carry an average
effective interest rate of 2.050 % (2016: 1.73%) per annum.
Deposits from customers represents deposits made with the parent company and institutions and carry
an average effective interest rate of 1.22 % (2016: 0.94%) per annum.
14. ISLAMIC FINANCING PAYABLES
2017
Ijara Murabaha Total 2016
KD KD KD KD
Gross amount 850,000 12,092,253 12,942,253 13,990,129
Less: deferred profit - {65,470) {65,470) (125,878)
850,000 12,026,783 12,876,783 13,864,251
The fair value of Islamic financing payables approximates the carrying value as at the reporting date
and maturing within a year. The effective profit rate payable approximates 5% (2016: 5%) per annum.
Included in murabaha payables are contracts amounting to KD 1,387,299 (2016: KD 2,963,810) which
has been secured by investments in available for sale financial assets amounting to KD 893,253 {2016:
KD 897,183) (Note 9).
15. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND OTHER LTABILITIES
2017 2016
KD KD
Sundry creditors and accrued expenses 11,001,224 7,531,891
Provision for employees’ end of service benefits 5,412,185 4,747,215
Provision for employees’ leave 636,946 636,063
Rent received in advance 212,130 189,934
Directors’ remuneration 95,000 45,000
Accrued interest payable 166,972 156,984
Dividend payable 413,779 377,840
Others 11,737 95,576
17,949,973 13,780,503
16. SHARE CAPITAL
2017 2016
KD KD
Authorised, issued and fully paid-up share capital of
551,250,000 shares at a nominal value of 100 Kuwaiti Fils,

each paid in cash 55,125,000 55,125,000

The Parent Company has one class of ordinary shares, which carries no right to fixed income.
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17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

TREASURY SHARES

2017 2016
Number of shares 3,261,581 3,261,581
Percentage of issued shares 0.5917% 0.5917%
Cost (“KD”) 734,629 734,629
Market value (“KD™") 368,559 277,234

The treasury shares of the Parent company have not been mortgaged or collateralised as at the
reporting period. The Parent Company is committed to keeping reserves and retained earning equal to
the purchased treasury shares, which are non-distributable along acquisition period according to the
instructions of the concerned regulatory authorities.

STATUTORY RESERVE
In accordance with the Companies’ Law, 10% of profit for the year attributable to shareholders of the

Parent Company before KFAS, NLST, Zakat and directors’ remuneration is required to be transferred
to statutory reserve. The Parent Company may resolve to discontinue such annual transfers when the

" reserve reaches 50% of the paid-up share capital.

Distribution of the statutory reserve is limited to the amount required to enable the payment of
dividend of 5% of share capital in years when retained earnings are not sufficient for the payment of
dividend of that amount. During the year, an amount of KD 1,734,953 (2016: KD 417,675) was
transferred from the current year profits to statutory reserve.

YOLUNTARY RESERVE -

In accordance with the Parent Company’s Articles of Association, 10% of profit for the year
attributable to shareholders of the Parent Company before KFAS, NLST, Zakat and directors’
remuneration is required to be transferred to the voluntary reserve. This transfer may be discontinued
by a resolution adopted by the ordinary assembly of the shareholders’ as recommended by the Board
of Directors. There are no restrictions on distributions from the voluntary reserve. During the year, an
amount of KD 1,734,953 (2016: KD 417,675) was transferred from the current year profits to
voluntary reserve.

RENTAL INCOME )

2017 2016

KD KD
Rental income from investment properties 2,755,915 2,557,300
Rental and other related expenses (2,024,467) (2,257,079)
Vehicles rental income {(net) 2,487,590 2,553,416
Exhibition income {net) 4,969,536 5,067,618

8,188,574 7,921,255
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
General and administrative expenses include the following:

: 2017 2016

KD KD
Staff costs 8,548,353 5,971,820
Depreciation 1,201,302 707,479
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22.

23.

24.

25.

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

2017 2016

KD KD
Financial assets available for sale (Note 9) 73,975 1,414,020
Investment in associates (Note 27) - 687,264
73,975 2,101,284

RELEASE OF PROVISION FOR CREDIT LOSSES

2017 2016

KD KD
Accounts receivables and other assets (Note 7) (63,295) (58,152)
Settlement on trade receivables - 47,186
Wakala receiyables 2,110,722 (343,755)
Loans and advances {(Note 8) 2,303,386 558,387
Investments held to maturity - 11,438
4,350,813 215,104

The Parent company settled its wakala receivable of one of its debtors with a third party which had
been fully provided in previous vears. The settlement resulted in a reversal of provision of KD
2,110,722,

OTHER INCOME

Other income includes an amount of KD 1,500,000 which represents provision on legal claims no
longer required relating to a subsidiary. This amount was recorded in 2011 and reversed during the
current year as the final court order related to the legal claim was in favour of the subsidiary.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE PARENT
COMPANY (BASIC AND DILUTED)

Basic and diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit for the year atiributable to
shareholders of the Parent Company by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the
vear, excluding treasury shares.

The Parent Company had no outstanding dilutive potential shares.

2017 2016

Profit for the year attributable to shareholders of the Parent
Company (KD) 16,443,050 3,980,301
Weighted average number of shares outstanding;:
Number of paid up shares (shares) 551,250,000 551,250,000
Less : Weighted average number of treasury shares (shares) (3,261,581) {3,261,581)
Weighted average number of shares outstanding (shares) 547,988,419 547,988,419
(Basic and diluted) earnings per share attributable to
shareholders of the Parent Company: (fils) 30.006 7.263
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26.

SUBSIDIARIES

The subsidiaries of the Parent Company, all of which have been included in these consolidated
financial statements, are as follows:

Country of
incorporation Proportion of
and principal ownership
place of interest at
Name of subsidiary business 31 December
2017 2016
KIC Financial Brokerage K.S.C. (Closed) Kuwait 45.47% 45.47%
Kuwait International Fair Company K.5.C. (Closed) Kuwait 51% 51%
Kuwait Foreign Investment Company USA 100% 100%
Kuwait Maritime Transportation Company K.8.C. (Closed) Kuwait 76% 76%
Arab Financial Services Company K.S.C. (Closed) Kuwait 100% 100%
Al Joan International Holding Company K.8.C. (Closed) Kuwait 100% 100%
Pearl Company For Economic Consultancy Company W.L.L. Kuwait 100% 100%
Al Masar Leasing and Investment Company K.S.C. (Closed) Kuwait 45.75% 45.75%
Al Awaed Fund Kuwait 99.30% 99.20%
KIC Bond Fund ‘ Kuwait 100% 100%
Al Hilal Islamic Fund Kuwait 64.03% 65.53%
KIC Eurc Equity Fund Guernsey 9%.92% 98.37%
KIC Diversified Fund Guernsey 100% 100%
KIC Pacific Equity Fund Guernsey 96.50% 96.50%
KIC North American Equity Fund Guernsey 100% 99.86%
KIC Global Bond Fund Guernsey 100% 43.90%

KIC bond Fund, a 100% owned subsidiary is under liquidation.

During the year, certain unitholders of KIC European Equity Fund had redeemed its units in the fund
resulting in increase in ownership of the parent company from 98.37% to 99.92% resulting in decrease
in non-controlling interests by KD 133,458,

During the year, the unitholder of KIC Global Bond Fund has redeemed its units which resulted in
increase the ownership of the parent company from 43.90% to 100% resulting in decrease in non-

. controlling interests by KD 1,751,737.

During the year, a subsidiary of the Parent Company sold one of its subsidiaries for a consideration of
KD 1,025,000 resulting in net gain of KD 175,178 and also resulted in decrease in non- controlling
interests by KD 849,822,

During the year; the other movements in ownership of non- controlling interests resulting in increase
in non- controlling interests by KD 186.

During the year, the Group ceased to classify Kuwait International Fair Company K.S5.C (Closed) (a

subsidiary) as non- current assets held for sale and started to consolidate the subsidiary line by line
(Note 37).
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26. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Parent Company that have a
material non-controlling interest:

Country of Proportion of
incorporation ownership interests
and principal held by non- (Loss) / profit allocated to Accumuated
Name of place of controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controtling interests
subsidiary business at 31 December at 31 December at 31 December
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
KD KD KD KD

Kuwait
[nternational
Fair Company
KS.C
{Closed) Kuwait 49% 49% 1,162,057 1,127,187 13,533,592 13,063,697
KIC Financial
Brokerage
K.5.C.
(Closed) Kuwait . 54.53% 54.53% {40,385) 16,567 6,414,959 6,473,961
Al Massar
Leasing and
Investment
Company
K.S.C. Closed Kuwait 54.25% 54.25% 1,019,563 855,864 9,724 986 9,519,902
Individually immaterial subsidiaries with non-controlling
interegsts 713,798 (101,508) 4,232,537 5,445,196
Total 2,855,033 1,898,110 33,906,074 34,502,756

Summarised financial information in respect of each subsidiary that has material non-controlling
interests before intra-group eliminations is presented below: Al Masar Leasing and Investment
Company K.8.C. (Closed) itself is a Group of companies and it has its own non-controlling interest

Kuwait International Fair Company K.5.C. (Closed)

2017 2016
KD KD

Current assets’ 18,761,344 19,097,430
Non-current assets 12,809,509 11,383,675
Current liabilities {1,984,855) (1,949,162)
Non-current liabilities (1,967,410) {1872,274}
Total equity 27.618,588 26,659,669
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Parent Company 14,084,996 13,595,972

2017 2016

KD KD
For the year ended 31 December
Revenue 5,444,782 3,268,071
Expenses (3,073,287) (2,967,723)
Profit 2,371,495 2,300,348
KIC Financial Brokerage K.S.C. (Closed)

2017 2016

KD KD
Current assets 811,523 417,815
Non-current assets 11,233,489 11,630,035
Current liabilities (72.444) (87.959)
Non-current liabilities (208,476) (87,597)
Total equity 11,764,092 11,872,294
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Parent Company 5,345,133 5,398,143
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27,

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

40

2017 2016
KD * KD
For the year ended 31 December
Revenue 599,081 586,494
Expenses (673,142) {556,113)
(Loss) / profit (74,061) 30,381
Al Masar Leasing and Investment Company K.S.C. (closed)
2017 2016
KD KD
Total assets 29,368,266 30,128,427
Total liabilities (14,987,070) (16,802,563)
Total equity 14,381,196 13,325,864
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Parent Company 4,656,210 3,805,962
For the year ended 31 December
Revenue 4,469,217 4,120,734
Expenses (2,805,062) {2,757,847)
Profit 1,664,155 1,362,887
INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
Ownership interest
Place of %o
Name Principal activity incorporation 2017 2016
National Hotels Company B.S.C. Hotel operations Bahrain 20.94% 20.94%
_ Ithraa Capital Company Investment Saudi Arabia 23% 23%
Investment
Instrata Capital B.8.C. Management Services Bahrain 20% 20%
Economic Group for Brokerage E.S.C. Brokerage Egypt 30% 30%
Al Riyada Tower for Real Estate Services
(Formely ' Maritime Tankers and Shipping
Company) K.5.C. {Closed} Shipping Kuwait 38.76% 38.76%
Summarised financial information {(material associates):
National Hotels Company B.S.C.
2017 2016
KD KD
As at 30 September
Total assets 69,826,815 75,651,679
Total liabilities (3,232,429) (5,587,031
2017 2016
KD KD
For the period ended 30 September
Revenue 6,457,702 7,279,922
Profit 2,168,792 2,802,656
Other comprehensive (loss) / income (3,696,801) 45,111
Total comprehensive (loss) / income (1,528,009) 2,847,767
Dividends received from associate 224,347 222,193
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27.

28.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

National Hotels Company B.S.C. is equity accounted using 30 September 2017 as it was the latest
available financial information.

Summarised financial information (immaterial associates):

2017 2016
KD KD
Total assets 7,106,390 7,102,014
Total liabilities {624,164} (565,088)
Revenue 1,628,244 315,147
Profit / (loss) 405,463 (816,563)
Other comprehensive income / (loss) 5,699 (58,588)
Total comprehensive income / (loss) 411,162 (875,151)

Investment in associates includes a quoted associate with carrying value of KD 13,944,864 (2016:
KD 14,671,537), having a fair value of KD 5,818,757 (2016: KD 5,255,852). However, management
has performed an assessment of the associate’s recoverable amount as at the reporting date based on
a value in use calculation using cash flow projections as per the financial budgets of the associate and
assumning an annual growth rate in revenue of approximately 8% on a five years period.

A pre-tax discount rate of 11%% per annum rate was used to discount the cash flow projections and a
growth rate of 3% per annum of the future cash flows in arriving at the terminal value. The
assessment indicated that the recoverable amount of the associate approximates KD 15,461,639
(2016: 15,289,198) which is above the carrying amount at the reporting date; accordingly no
impairment loss was recognised.

If the estimated discount rate for the CGUs had been 2% higher than management’s estimates, the
recoverable amount of the Group’s CGUs will be lower by KD 2,417,106 (2016: KD 1,936,180).

Management determined budgeted gross margin based on past performance and its expectations of
market development. The weighted average growth rates used are consistent with the forecasts
included in industry reports. The discount rates used reflect specific risks relating to the industry.

During the previous year, the Group reviewed the carrying value of the other investment in associates
and determined the investment in associate in Egypt was below the recoverable amount. Accordingly,
the Group recognised an impairment loss on its investment in an associate amounting KD 687,264
(Note 22).

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s interest in the associate.
ANNUAL GENERAL ASSEMBLY MEETING

The Annual General Assembly Meeting of shareholders was held on 3 May 2017 and approved the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 and the Board
of Directors recommendation to distribute cash dividend of 7% of the share capital (7 fils per share)
to the registered shareholders at the date of the general assembly for the year ended 31 December
2016 and to distribute directors’ remuneration of KD 45,000,

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 08 February 2018 proposed distribution of cash
dividend of 20% of the share capital (20 fils per share) (2016: 7% of the share capital (7 fils per
share)) for the year ended 31 December 2017 to the registered shareholders at the date of the general
assembly, and to distribute directors’ remuneration of KD 95,000 (2016: KD 45,000} which is subject
to approval of the shareholders annual general assembly
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29, FIDUCIARY ASSETS
" The Group manages investment portfolios on behalf of the principal shareholder, government agencies
and financial institutions. The total value of these portfolios at 31 December 2017 amounted to KD
'2.128 billion (2016: KD 2.066 billion) which are not reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
The portfolios have no recourse to the general assets of the Group. The Group makes investment
decisions in line with the respective agreements.
Income earned from fiduciary assets amounted to KD 5,874,541 for the year ended 31 December 2017
(2016: KD 5,567,287).
30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Related parties are the Group’s shareholders who have representation on the Board of Directors,
members of the Board of Directors, senior management, their close family members, associates and
subsidiaries. In the normal course of business subject to the Group’s management approval, there
have been transactions with related parties during the year ended 31 December 2017. Related party
balances and transactions are as follows:
2017 2016
KD KD
_ Consolidated statement of financial position:
Accounts payable (22,608) (22,608)
Deposits from customers (42,351,420} (41,742,746)
Transactions carried out with related parties during the vear ended 31 December were as follows:
2017 2016
KD KD
Consolidated statement of profit or loss
Management fees and commission income 2,826,052 2,330,231
Interest expense (479,255) (341,616)
Compensation of key management personnel
The compensation of key management personnel and directors during the year was as follows:
2017 2016
KD KD
Salaries and other short-term benefits 493,936 497,601
Executive committees fees 70,000 42,000
Post-employment benefits 149,590 80,859
713,526 620,460
31.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s Corporate Treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to
domestic and international financial markets, monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the
operations of the Group through internal risk reports, which analyse exposures by degree and
magnitude of risks. These risks include credit risk, market risk (including foreign currency risk,
interest rate risk and equity price risk) and liquidity risk.

Credit risk

In the ordinary course of business, the Group uses financial instruments. The use of financial
instruments also brings with it associated inherent risks. The Group recognises the relationship
between returns and risks associated with the use of financial instruments and the management of risks
forms an integral part of the Group’s strategic objectives.
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31.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Credit risk (continued)

The strategy of the Group is to maintain a strong risk management culture and manage the risk/reward
relationship within and across the Group’s major risk-based lines of business.

The following sections describe the several risks inherent in the business, their nature and how they
are managed. Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an
obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Group attempts to control credit risk
by monitoring credit exposures, limiting transactions with specific counterparties, and continually
assessing the creditworthiness of counterparties. Concentrations of credit risk arise when a number of
counter parties are engaged in similar business activities or activities in the same geographic region, or
have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be
similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other condition,

Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Group’s performance to
developments affecting a particular industry or geographic location.

The Group seeks to manage its credit risk exposure through diversification of lending activities to
avoid undue concentrations of risks with individuals or groups of customers in specific locations or

. business. The Group mitigates the credit risk by obtaining securities where appropriate.

Maximum exposure to credit risk
An analysis of the Group’s financial assets is as follows:

Gross exposure Net exposure
2017 2016 2017 2016

KD’000 KD’000 KD’000 KD’000
Cash equivalents 18,826 14,297 18,826 14,297
Placements 15,352 16,293 15,352 16,293
Accounts receivable and other assets 22,207 17,874 18,310 13,990
Wakala receivables 12,543 20,768 1,844 3,094
Loans and advances ‘ 22,003 26,473 2,838 4,915
Available for sale financial assets (bonds) 2,361 2,901 2,361 2,901
Investment held to maturity 9,973 10,020 2,987 3,035
Total 103,265 108,626 62,518 58,525

Geographic concentration of maximum exposure to credit risk
The maximum exposure to credit risk for financial assets at the reporting date by geographic region
was:

GCC Europe America Asia Total
KD'000 KD*000 KD’000 KD’000 KD’000
31 December 2017
Cash equivalents 11,013 6,678 1,135 - 18,826
Placements 15,352 - - - 15,352
Accounts receivable and
other assets 18,310 - - - 18,310
Wakala receivables 1,844 - - - 1,844
Loans and advances ‘ 2,838 - - - 2,838
Available for sale :
financial assets (bonds) 2,361 - - - 2,361
Investment held to maturity 2,987 - - - 2,987
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31.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Geographic concentration of maximum exposure to credit risk (continued)

North
GCC Europe America Asia Total
KD’000 KD000 KD'000 KD’000 KD’000
31 December 2016
Cash equivalents 12,486 84 1,719 8 14,297
Placements 16,293 - - 16,293
Accounts receivable and
other assets 13,808 - 182 13,990
Wakala receivable 3,094 - - 3,094
Loans and advances 4915 - - 4915
Available for sale
financial assets (bonds) 2,901 - - 2,901
Investment held to maturity 3,035 - - 3,035

Credit concentration

The credit limit and balances of the 5 major counterparties at the reporting date are:

2017

Carrying amount
KD’000

21,439

Credit quality of financial assets

2016

Carrying amount

KD'000

19,753

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by
reference to historical information about counterparty defauit rates. Credit exposures classified under
‘standard’ and ‘high standard’ comprise facilities whose payment performance is fully compliant with
contractual conditions and which are not ‘impaired’. The classification of these facilities is based on

31 December 2017

Cash equivalents

Placements

Accounts receivable and other assets
Wakala receivables

Loans and advances

Available for sale financial assets (bonds)
Investments held to maturity

31 December 2016
Cash equivalents
Placements

Accounts receivable and other assets
Wakala receivables

Loans and advances

Available for sale financial assets (bonds)
Investments held to maturity

" internal management rating and previous history with the counterparty.

Neither past due nor impaired

Standard High Standard Total
KD’000 KD000 KD*000

- 18,826 18,826

- 15,352 15,352

18,310 - 18,310

1,344 - 1,844

2,838 - 2,838

2,361 - 2,361

2,987 - 2,987
28,340 34,178 62,518

- 14,297 14,297

- 16,293 16,293

13,990 - 13,990
3,094 - 3,094

4,915 - 4,915

2,901 - 2,901

3,035 - 3,035
27,935 30,390 58,525
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Credit quality of financial assets (continued)
The ageing analysis of financial assets is as follows:

31 December 2017

Up to three months

3 to 6 months

6 to 12 months

More than 12 months

" 31 December 2016

Up to three months

3 to 6 months

6 to 12 months

More than 12 months

Past due but not Neither past due

impaired nor impaired
KD’000 KD 000

- 30,644

- 5,700

3,406 19,595

- 2,989

3,406 58,928

Past due but not

Neither past due

impaired nor impaired
KD’000 KD’000
- 24,667
- 3,047
5,126 9,850
- 2
5,126 37,566

Management has fully provided against financial assets that are individually determined to be
impaired amounting to KD 38,522,291 (2016: KD 45,854,989).

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and
equity prices will affect the Group’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The
objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within
acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency
exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices.

Foreign corrency risk management

The Group undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign currencies. Hence, exposures to
exchange rate fluctuations arise. Exchange rate exposures are managed within approved policy
parameters,

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary
liabilities at the reporting date are as follows:

Liabilities Assets
2017 2016 2017 . 2016
KD'000 KD*000 KD’000 KD’ 000
US Dollar 53,858 60,609 51,548 66,831
Euro 9,519 8,244 11,076 8,148
Bahraini Dinar 7,691 10,337 15,772 20,279

Foreign exchange rate sensitivity

Based on the Group’s financial assets and liabilities held at the year end, an assumed 0.5% increase in
exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, would impact the Group’s profit and equity as
follows.
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31.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Foreign exchange rafe sensitivity (continued)
A positive sign indicates an increase in profit and equity. A negative sign indicates a decrease in profit

and equity.

US Dollar
Euro
Bahraini Dinar

2017 2016
Effect on Effect on Effect on Effect on
profit equity profit equity
KD’000 KD’000 KD’000 KD’000
217 206 133 259
42 50 42 41
35 75 29 79
294 331 204 379

There has been no change in the methods and the assumptions used in the preparation of the

sensitivity analysis.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the sensitivity of the Group’s financial condition to future movements in interest
rates. The Group is exposed to interest rate risk as a result of mismatches or ‘gaps’ in the amounts of
assets and liabilities that mature or reprice in a given period. The Group can reduce this risk by
matching the repricing of assets and liabilities through a number of ways.

The Group’s effective interest rates on financial instruments and the maturity analysis based on
contractual repricing or maturity dates, whichever dates are earlier are as follows:

At 31 December 2017

Assets
Cash equivalents

Placements

Financial assets at fair
value through profit or

loss

Accounts receivable and

other assets
Wakala receivables
Loans and advances

Available for sale
financial assets

Investments held for
maturity

Above Non Effective
Up to 1-3 3-12 12 interest interest
1 mgnth months months months sensitive Total rate
KD’000 KD'00¢ KD'000 KD’000 KD’000 KD000 %
5,643 - - - 13,183 18,826 0.44%-1%
1,346 1,500 5,700 6,806 - 15,352 1.25%
- - - - 66,730 66,730 -
- - - - 18,310 18,310 -
- - - - 1,844 1,844 4%
- - - - 2,838 2,838 425%
- - - 2,361 57,792 60,153 5.75%-7%
- - - - 2,987 2,987 6%
6,989 1,500 5,700 9,167 163,684 187,040
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31.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

At 31 December 2017

Non Effective
Up to 1-3 3-12 interest interest
1 month  months months sensitive Total rate
KD’000 KD’000 KD’(00 KD'000 KD’000 %
Liabilities
Deposits from banks and
customers 52,525 17,455 2,876 - 72,856 0.02%-2.6%
Islamic financing payables - - 12,877 - 12,877 5%
Accounts payable and
other liabilities - - - 17,949 17,949
52,525 17,455 15,753 17,949 103,682
At 31 December 2016
Above Non Effective
Up to 1-3 3-12 12 interest interest
1 month months months months sensitive Total rate
KD000 KD’000 KD'060 KD'000 KI¥000 KD’000 %
Assets
Cash equivalents 6,277 - - - 8,020 14,297 0.44%-1%
Placements 16,293 - - - - 16,293 1.25%
Financial assets at fair
value through profit or
loss - - - - 28,352 28,352 -
Accounts receivable and
~ other assets - - - - 13,99¢ 13,990 -
Wakala receivables - - - - 3,094 3,094 4%
Loans and advances - - - - 4,915 4915 3.75%-13%
Available for sale
financial assets - - - 2901 102,245 105,146 5.75% -7%
Investments held for
maturity - - - - 3,035 3,035 6%
22,570 - - 2901 163,651 189,122
Non Effective
Up to 1-3 3-12 interest interest
1 month  months months sensitive Total rate
KD*000 KD’000 KD’000 KD000 KD'000 %
Liabilities
Deposits from banks and 0.01%-
customers 60,528 18,382 - - 78,910 2.25%
Islamic financing payables - - 13,864 - 13,864 4.25%-6%
Accounts payable and
other liabilities - - - 13,781 13,781
60,528 18,382 13,864 13,781 106,555
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31.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Interest rate risk (continued)
Based on the Group’s financial assets and liabilities held at the year end, an assuméd 50 basis points

increase in interest rate, with all other variables held constant, would impact the Group’s profit as
follows: -

Movement in basis Effect on profit and equity

points 2017 2016
Currency KD’000 KD'000
m  Kuwaiti Dinars +50 +90 +41
m 1S Dollars +50 +249 +199

Positive sign indicates an increase in profit and equity. A negative sign indicates a decrease in profit
and equity. There has been no change in the methods and the assumptions used in the preparation of
the sensitivity analysis. '

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes
in market prices, whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual security, or its
issuer, or factors affecting all securities traded in the market.

The Group is exposed to equity risk with respect to its investments.

The Group limits equity price risk by maintaining a diversified portfolio and by continuous
monitoring of developments in international equity and bond markets. In addition, the Group actively
monitors the key factors that affect stock and bond market movements, including analysis of the
operational and financial performance of investees. The following table shows the impact on the
Group’s financial assets sensitive to equity prices considering a 5% change with other factors
constant. There has been no change in the methods and the assumptions used in the preparation of the
sensitivity analysis.

2017
% change in Effect on Effect on
Market indices equity price profit equity Total
KD’ 000 KD’000 KD’000
Kuwait stock exchange +5 + 80 + 176 +256
GCC markets +5 +315 - +315
Other markets +5 +223 - +223
2016
%o change in Effect on Effect on
Market indices equity price profit equity Total
KD’000 KD’000 KD’000
Kuwait stock exchange +5 + 197 + 2,639 + 2,836
GCC markets +35 + 86 - + 86
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will be unable to meet its liabilities when they fall due. Liquidity
risk can be caused by market disruptions or credit downgrades which may cause certain sources of
funding to dry up immediately. To limit this risk, management has arranged diversified funding sources,
manages assets with liquidity in mind, and monitors liquidity on a daily basis. The table below analyses
the Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities based on the remaining period at the reporting date to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows.

Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not
significant. Balance due over 12 months equal to carrying balance as management maintain minimum
balance over 12 months, hence discounting is not significant. The maturity profile is monitored by
management to ensure adequate liquidity is maintained.

2017 2016
Less than 3 3-12 Over 1 Less than 3-12 Over
months months YEear Total 3 months months 1 year Total
KB 000 KD'000 KD'000 KD’000 KD’000 KD’000 KD’000 KD’000
Deposits from
banks and
customers 69,979 2,877 - 72,856 78,910 - - 78,910
Islamic financing
payables - 12,877 - 12,877 - 13,864 - 13,864
Accounts payable
and other
liabilities 1,668 10,868 5,412 17,949 1,668 7,366 4,747 13,781
103,68
71,647 26,623 5,412 2 80,578 21,230 4,747 106,555
Contingent
tiabilities - 2,293 - 2,293 - 2,293 - 2,293
Operating lease
commitments 1,668 - 10,008 11,676 1,668 - 11,676 13,344

32. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Measured at Carried Amortised

fair value at cost cost Total

31 December 2017 KD’000 KD’000 KD'000 KD’000
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents - - 18,830 18,830
Placements - - 15,352 15,352
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 66,730 - - 66,730
Accounts receivable and other assets (excluding
prepayments) - - 16,836 16,836
Wakala receivables - - 1,844 1,844
Loans and advances - - 2,838 2,838
Available for sale financial assets 56,063 1,729 2,361 60,153
Investments held for maturity - - 2,987 2,987
Financial liabilities:
Depasits from banks and customers - - 72,856 72,856
Islamic financing payable - - 12,877 12,877
Accounts payable and other liabilities - - 17,949 17,949
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32. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued)
Measured at Carried Amortised

fair value at cost cost Total
31 December 2016 KD’000 KD’000 KD*000 KD’000
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents - - 14,309 14,309
Placements - - 16,293 16,293
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 28,352 - - 28,352
Accounts receivable and other assets
(excluding prepayments) - - 13,990 13,990
Wakala receivables ' - - 3,094 3,094
Loans and advances - - 4,915 4915
Available for sale financial assets 96,667 5,578 2,901 105,146
Investments held for maturity - - 3,035 3,035
Financial liabilities:
Deposits from banks and customers - - 78,910 78,910
Islamic financing payable - - 13,864 13,864
Accounts payable and other liabilities - - 13,781 13,781

The fair value of the following financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts:
Cash and cash equivalents

Placements

Accounts receivables

Wakala receivables, loans and receivables and investment held to maturity

Deposits from banks and customers

Islamic financing payable

Accounts payable and other liabilities

Financial instruments measured at fair value
Fair value represents the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to
initial recognition at fair value, grouped into levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is
observable. :

e Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical financial assets.

e Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset, either directly {i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices).

¢ Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for
the asset that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The level within which the financial asset is classified is determined based on the lowest level of
significant input to the fair value measurement.

The financial assets measured at fair value in the consolidated statement of financial position are
grouped into the fair value hierarchy as follows:

31 December 2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

: KD’000 KD000 KD*000 KD’000
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 11,786 53,679 1,265 66,730
Available for sale financial assets
Quoted securities 3,680 - - 3,680
Unquoted funds and bonds - 12,284 - 12,284
Unquoted securities - - 42 460 42 460
Total 3,680 12,284 42,460 58,424
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32, SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

31 December 2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
KD 000 KD’000 KD’000 KD000

Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss 2,675 24,133 1,544 28,352
Available for sale financial assets

Quoted securities 4,231 - - 4,231
Unquoted funds and bonds - 43,539 - 43,539
Unquoted securities - - 51,799 51,799
Total 4,231 43,539 51,799 99,569

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the
reporting date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from
an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the group is the current bid price. These instruments are
included in Level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it
is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to
fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is
included in Level 3. Vatuation of unquoted equity investments classified under level 3 is normally based
on price to book value technique, dividend yield method and external valuations with marketability
discount provided in the range of 20% to 40%.

If marketability discount changes by 5% with all other factors constant, the impact on the profit and
equity would be KD 72,526 and KD 2,330,957 respectively.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of available for sale financial assets

Financial
Available for assets at fair
sale financial value through
assets profit or loss Total
KD000 KD’000 KD'000

2017

1 January 2017 51,799 1,544 53,343
Total gains or losses recognised in:

Consolidated statement of profit or loss - (279) (279)
Other comprehensive income (6,225) - (6,225)
Purchases / sales (net) (3,114) - (3,114)
31 December 2017 42 460 1,265 43,725
2016

1 January 2016 58,576 1,547 60,123
Total gains or losses recognised in:

Consolidated statement of profit or loss - &) 3)
Other comprehensive income (5,744) - (5,744)
Purchases / sales {net) (1,033) - (1,033)
31 December 2016 51,799 1,544 53,343
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33. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

34.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balances. In order
to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The capital structure of the Group consists of issued share capital less treasury shares, reserves and
retained earnings.

Gearing ratio
The gearing ratio at year end was as follows:

2017 2016

KD KD
Borrowings 85,732,376 92,774,747
Less: Cash and cash equivalents and placements (34,181,733) (30,601,990)
Net debt 51,550,643 62,172,757
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Parent Company 127,221,741 125,877,229
Net debt to equity ratio 40.520% 49.392%

During the year, the Group has complied with all externally imposed capital requirements.
OPERATIONAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from inadequate or failed internal processes, human error,
systems failure, or from external events. The Group has a set of policies and procedures, which are
approved by the Board of Directors and are applied to identify, assess and supervise operational risk in
addition to other types of risks relating to the banking and financial activities of the Group. Operational
risk is managed by the operational risk function, which ensures compliance with policies and
procedures and monitors operational risk as part of overall global risk management. :

35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
2017 2016
KD KD
Operating lease commitments 11,676,350 13,344,400
Capital commitments - 248,000
Investment commitments 73,944 75,114
The minimum capital commitments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:
2017 2016
KD KD
Not later than one year 1,668,050 1,668,050
Later than one year but not later than five years 8,340,250 8,340,250
Later than five years 1,668,050 3,336,100
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36.

37.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continued)

The following is the detail of the geographical segments:

Income Assets Capital expenditures
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

KD060 KD’000 KD’000 KD000 KD'000 KD’000

Kuwait 22,004 17,168 165,491 165,644 8,870 12,079

G.C.C. 261 688 62,513 53,674 - -
Other Middle

East and

Africa 688 (22) 1,578 5,045 - -

Eurcope 5,105 347 27,773 8,756 - -

America (32) 1,742 3,066 25,372 - -

Asia 1,350 5 4,389 8,444 - -

29,376 19,928 264,810 266,935 8,870 12,079

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

On 14 November 2014, the Board of Directors of the Parent Company announced a plan to dispose of
Kuwait International Fair Company K.S8.C. (Closed) (a subsidiary).

The sale has been delayed over the expected initial period due to the delay in renewal of certain lease
agreements of the subsidiary. On 1 August 2017, The Board of Directors ceased the plan to sell and does
not expects to complete the sale of its 51% equity interest in the subsidiary within a period of one year
from the reporting date. The Group ceased to classify the asset as held for sale as the criteria are no
longer met. Certain comparative figures of the prior financial year have been re-classified to conform to
the current financial year presentation.

The Group expects that the fair values less cost to sale of this subsidiary company will be higher than the
aggregate carrying amount of the related assets and liabilities; hence it does not affect the previously
disclosed profit for the year or equity.
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37.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES (Continued)

The details of reclassification are as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents
Placements

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Accounts receivable and other assets
Wakala receivables

Loans and advances

Financial assets available for sale
Investments held to maturity
Investments in associates
Investment propetrties

Intangible assets

Property and equipment

Assets of disposal group classified as held for sale
Total assets

Liabilities

Deposits from banks and customers

Islamic financing payables

Accounts payable and other liabilities

Liabilities of disposal group classified as held for sale

- Total liabilities

Total income

Total expenses and other charges
Operating profit

Other income

Profit before contribution to Kuwait Foundation for
the Advancement of Science (“KFAS™), National
Labour Support Tax (“NLST”) and Zakat and Board

of Directors remuneration

Profit for the year from continuing operations / profit

for the year
Profit for the year from discontinued operations

Profit for the year

55

Amount Amount
before after
reclassification reclassification

13,610,575 14,309,114
814,271 16,292,876
28,352,171 28,352,171
11,069,333 13,989,619
3,093,799 3,093,799
4,915,203 4,915,203
102,642,111 105,146,257
3,034,598 3,034,598
16,273,855 16,273,855
19,054,290 19,054,290
11,042,602 11,042,602
22,551,322 31,430,851
236,454,130 266,935,235
30,481,105 -
266,935,235 266,935,235
78,910,496 78,910,496
13,864,251 13,864,251
9,959,067 13,780,503
102,733,814 106,555,250
3,821,436 -
106,555,250 106,555,250
14,518,695 19,928,061
(11,182,715) (14,305,737
3,335,980 5,622,324
438,533 452,537
3,774,513 6,074,861
3,578,063 5,878,411
2,300,348 -
5,878,411 5,878,411




